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(Translation of the report ariginally issued in Spanish.
In the event of discrepancy, the Spanish Language version prevails)

Limited Review Report on the Interim Consalidated Financial Statements

To the Shareholders of LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A.
Limited review report on the interim consolidated financial statement
Introduction

We have reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements of LLEIDANETWORKS
SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A. (Parent Company) AND SUBSIDIARIES (The Group), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2022, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash-flow
statement and the notes to the interim consolidated financial statements for the six-manth
period then ended. The directors of the Parent Company are responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the interim consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the regulatory framework of financial information applicable to the Group
in Spain, as identified in Mote 2.a of the accompanying notes to the interim consolidated
financial statements, and of the internal control deemed necessary to enable the
preparation of the interim consolidated financial statements free of material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, Qur responsibility is to express a conclusion
on this interim consolidated financial statements based on our limited review.

Scope of review

We have performed our limited review in accordance with the International Standard on
Review Engagements 2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Company”. A limited review on interim consolidated financial
statements consists of making inquiries primarily of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters, and applying analytical procedures and other review procedures. A
limited review has a substantially lower scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
the regulations governing the auditing of accounts and, therefore, does not enable us o
abtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be
identified in an audit. Therefore, we do not express an audit opinion on the interim
consolidated financial statements.

Conclusion

Based on aur limited review, which cannot be understood as an audit of accounts, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim
consolidated financial statements does not present fairly, in all material respects the
true and fair view of the consolidated equity and consolidated financial position of
LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES, as of June 30, 2022, as
well as its consolidated results and its consolidated cash-flows for the six-month period
then ended, in accordance with the applicable financial information regulatory framework
and, in particular, with the accounting principles and criteria contained therein.
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Other matters

This report has been prepared at the request of the Board of Directors of
LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A. in connection with the publication of the
six-month period financial report required by the Circular 2/2022, BME Growth on
“Infarmation to be provided by companies listed for trading in the BME Growth segment
of BME MFT Equity”.

BDO Auditores, S.L.P. (ROAC n® §1273)

P /ﬁamﬁﬁ’ Roger (ROAC 16.887)

Audit Partner

October 19, 2022
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Interim Consolidated Financial Statementy of Group Leidanetworks Seyveis Telemdtics, S.A. and Subsidiaries

S the sie-manti pericd ended an June 30, 2022

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 AND DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Expressed in Euros)

- Notes to the
! Consalidated

ASSETS Anntial Aceoumis 302022 3zl

MNON-CURRENT ASSETS 11.778. 752,18 12.006.175,29
Intangible assels MNote 5 10, T60L817,16 11.031.525,90
Goodwill on consolidalion 4.373.867,61 4, 610,280,009
Fesearch 247018507 2.277.036,10
lndustrial property GTR.516,79 663, 124,55
Orbher intangible assel 3.236.247.69 3.479.076,16
Tangible fixed assets Note 6 625.167,04 626.565.81
Lanel ane buildings 151.167,48 147.8305,21
Technical installations and other tangible fixed assets 416,618,944 431 .380,00
Fixed assels under construction and advances 57,380,060 STAR0.G0
Long-term fnancial investments Note 8 67.368,95 66, 157,21
Deferred Tax Assets Mote 14 32539903 201,926,317
CURRENT ASSETS 1L472.303,%6 11.459.992 86
Stocks 157,70 489,28
Trade and other receivables 5.653.934,97 18406794
Client receivables for sales and services Mote 8.2 4,684 6RO, T 4.368.443,08
Sundry debtors Mote 8.2 [16.281,77 75.080,31
Staff Mote 8.2 3.338,13 108,05
Current o a3sels Mote 14 TOR.A03,24 03, T35.60
Other receivables from Public Authorities Mote 14 RBOTTL05 135.754,92
Short-term financial assety MNote §.2 R12.022.00 R12.022,00
Short-term accrials F14.328,51 406,670,580
Cash and cash equivalents Mote 8.1, 3.961.860,78 5.056,742,82
Cash 3.06] 860,78 3.056,742,82
TOTAL ASSETS 22.521.056,14 23.476.168,15




Inierim Consolidated Financial Statementy of Group Lieidanetworks Serveis Telemidtics, 84, and Subsidiaries

S the stc-manth peviod ended on June 30, 2022

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS

S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 AND DECEMBER 31, 2021

(Expressed in Euros)

Notes'ty the

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Annuoal Acaounts 362022 i D
EQUITY .175.526,74 6.731.536,93
Equity 0.154.863,77 6.727.957,69
Capital Node 12.1 320.998.86 I20.998,86
Share Capital 320,995,586 320,998,806
Izsue Preminm Mote 12.3 5.244.344,28 5.244.344,28
Reserves Mote 12.2 2.601.356,67 1.935.015,50
Legal and statutory G, 199,77 04,1949.77
Oher Resarves 2357, 156,50 L&T0.815,63
{Shares and own holdings in equity) Note 12.4 (1.848.389,8%) [ LGE3 8, T6)
Financinl year result

attributed to the pavent company MNote 18 (163:441,15) 911.483,81
Consalidated Losses and Profits (185 153,76) &73.6607,33
{Minority inlerest losses and profits) 2170961 581648
Adjustments for changes in value B 343,54 37.398,75
Minority inferests Mote 4 (65.6RLBT) {35.819,51)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES T.707.438,64 BG10.090,:4:4
Long-term debis TT07 435,64 BA10.096,44
Diebts with credit instiiutions Mote 9.1 6,075.562,52 o RO 4R 4]
Other financial liabilities Note 9.1 1.631,876,12 I.716.048,03
CURRENT LIABILITIES 8.638.090,76 #.134.534,78
Short-term provisions 365713 38.021,23
Other provisions 1.657,13 38.021,23
Shori-terms debis Mote 1 502323483 4.565,359,51
Debts with credit institations 2390.604,40 1.940.259.31
Other financial liabitities 2.632.620,43 2.625.100,20
Trade and other payables 3.552.481,80 3.531.154,04
Suppliers Mote 9.1 1,180, 886,98 1,222.378,07
Sundry ceeditors Mote 9.1 1.523.642.90 1,478,005, 64
Staff {remuneration payable) Mafe 9, | [20.007,72 114.206,30
Current tax liability Mote 14 105,875,592 -
Orther debirs with Public Authorities Mote 14 480 673 %3 598.931.70
Addvances from clicnis Mote 9.1 131.324.45 | 17.632.28
Accinals SR.717,00 -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 22.521.056,14 23.476.168,15




Interin Congolidated Fliancial Statements of Gronp Feidanetvorks Serveis Telematios, S.A, and Subsidiavies

o the six-manth period ended an June 30, 2022

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSES STATEMENT FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD

ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2022 AND THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2021

{Expressed in Euros)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS |

Notes (o the
Consalidated

Annual Aceounts 2022 (6 months)

2021 (6 months)

Met turnover
Work perfurmed by the Company for its assets

Supplies
Goods consmed

Other operating income

Staff expenses

Wage, salaries and the like

Fringe benefils

Other operating expenses

External charges for services

Taxes

Losses, Impairment and change in trade provisions
Other current operaling €xXpenses
Amartization of fixed asscts

Impairment and results of disposals of fixed assets
Other earnings

OPERATING EARNIGS

Financial income

Financial expenses

Change in fair value of finaneial instruments
Exchange differences

FINANCIAL EARNINGS

PRE-TAX EARNINGS

Profit tax

FINANCIAL YEAR'S EARNINGS

Result attributed to the Parent Company

Result attributed to minerity interests

Mote 158
Mote 5

Mote 15,5

Mote 15.¢

Motes 5 and 6

Mote 15.4
MNote 15.4
Mote 15.d

Mote 15.4d

Mote 14

Mote 18

1,532, 762,24
6015.542,95

(5.227.712,29)
(5.227.712,29)

23.392,12
(3.163.700,31)
(2.431.921,23)
(731.779,08)
(1,860,673,99)
(1.822.590,07)
(38.112,42)
28,50
(1.026.527,38)
(2.190,77)
{37,56)
(119,144,39)
269,70
(80.046,82)
444,07
T5.8i08,23
(3.524,82)
(122,669,21)
(62.484,55)
(185.153,76)

(163.444,16)

(21.709,61)

8.294.964,08
4idL046,29

(4077.613,52)
(4.077.613,52)

30.728,15
(1.921,972,40)
(1,459.623,55)
(462, 346,85)
(1.532.033,55)
(1.461.829,23)
(34.358,32)
(15.358.32)
(0,23}
{536.332,76)
[9.146,92)
502,13
6:49.231,50
598,37
(38.113,30)
14,45
4772571
10,235,63
E59.467,13
(8.662.30)
G50.804,83
667.521,69

(16.716,46)




Interior Consolidated Financtal Statemenis of Group Lieidanetworks Seeveis Telewnatics, S.A, el Subsicliaries

Jor the stx-manth period ended on June 30, 2022

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, §.A.

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED

INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2022 AND

THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 34, 2021

{Expressed in Euros)

2022 (6 months) 2021 (i months)
CONSOLIDATED RESULT FOR THE YEAR {185.153,76) 650.804,83
Ineome and expenses recognised
directly to equity
Conversion differences 38,391,534 {78.541,32)
TOTAL INCOME AN EXPENSE RECOGNISED
DIRECTLY IN EQUITY CONSOLIDATED EQUITY 38.391,34 (TH.541,32)
Transfers to the profit and loss account = =
TOTAL TRANSFERS TO CONSOLIDATED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT s !
TOTAL RECOGNISED CONSOLIDATED
CONSOLIDATED RECOGNISED )
INCOME AND EXPENSES (146.362,42) 815.354,06
Total income and expenses
attributable to the Parent Companiy (10449007} o1 1.483,81
Total income and expenses altributed to minerity interests (31.803,36) {45.465,15)
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Interin Cansolidated Finansial Steatements of Group Lleidanetwarks Servels Telemdtios, S A and Subsidiaries
S the siv-month peviod ended on June 30, 2022

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATIC

S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE SEX-MONTH PERIOD
ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2022 AND THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2021
(Expressed in Euros)

2022 2021
{6momths) (6 months)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5853582,37 1.405.575,62
Finaneial year's pre-tax earnings (122.669,21) G53467,13
Adjustments o eavnings L8675 61844038
Fixed asset amortisation 1.036,527 38 536,332,746
Waluation changes for impairment (28,50} Isa4s50
Ciming and losses on derecoenition and disposal of fied assets 2.190.77 0] 52
Fisancial incomce {26570 [S0R3T)
Financial expenses LR TR 3E.L1330
Changes in curvent caphtal {165.47%,13) 169, 138,21
Stocks 33158 =
Debrors and other acoounts receivable {504 885 51 ) JEas 09
(her currenl assels 2342 29 (14369 500
Trade piyables and other aceounts payable (B, 548,16 18672047
Other current [iabilitics 9691669 -
Crther non-carrent essets and liabilities 34 364,05 {41,237 85}
Other cash flow from operating activities (234,506, 04) (ROETO, 10
Intercst payments (B0.046,82) (38.113,30)
Receipts of inlerests 268,70 598,37
Receipts (payments) for profit tax (135.188,92) (3.555,17)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (737.500,77) {248.981,98)
Payments for investments [EREET. v A 171395030
Intangible assels (650 127,04 {451.775.25)
Tangible asscis £93.243,36) {262,174,05}
Oiher Nneicial assets (L201,74) -
Divestment proceeds 36.0080,42 £64.968,32
Ciroup companies and associates 3 6.930,73
Intangible azsets 3237370 9.146.92
Tangible assels 175672 .
{ither financial wssels . 448 890,67
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (U22.732,64) {1!2.114.‘.§!§}
Receipts and payments for cquity mstruments {234.943,17) 123.526,74
Disposals (Acquisitions) of own equity instrments {234 94317 12352674
Receipls and payments for Anancisl-lability imstroments {44,752 48} 3886536
Txxmince - SO0, 000,00
Amounts owed Lo credit instilutions i S00.000,00)
Repipment and aocisarion of (444,782 48) (461.1.34,64)
Amounts owed o credit institutions (368,130,801 (42T 448,043
Others L (33,686,600
Pryments for dividends and remuneration of other equity

Instrumcnis (243.006,9%) {274.617,09)
Dhividends {242.006,99) (27461709
NET INCREASEDECREASE OF ;

CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS {L.094.882 04) 1.045.368,65
Cagh sod cash equivalents at start of the Angncial year 5.056. 742,82 4,056 149 61

Casl and cash equivalents al end of the financisl year 306186078 5,101.518,26




Intervin Consolidaied Financial Statements of Graup Lleidanenvorks Sevveis Telematics, 5.4, and Subsidiaries
Jar the six-month period ended on June 30, 2022 7

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS
TELEMATICS, S.A.AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AS OF JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1. INCORPORATION, ACTIVITIES AND LEGAL SYSTEM OF THE PARENT
COMPANY

a) Incorporation and registered Office of the Parent Company

LLEIDANETWORKS SERVEIS TELEMATICS, 8. A. (hereinafter "the Company"). was
incorporated in Lleida on 30 January 1995. On October 7,2017, the Company approved the
change of its registered office located in General Lacy, number 42, Planta Baja - Local 1,
Madrid. In the previous year its registered office was located in the Parc Cientific i Tecnologic
Agroalimentari de Lleida, Edificio HI, Planta 2, in Lleida. On 26 October 2021, the board of
directors resolved to transfer the company's registered office to Calle Téllez, 56 Local C in
Madrid,

On June 30, 2011, the General Shareholders' Meeting resolved the transformation from a
Limited Company to a Public Limited Company. On December 12, 2011, the agreement
reached at the aforementioned meeting was submitted to the Mercantile Registry on February
17, 2012,

b) Activity of the Parent Company

Its activity consists in acting as a teleoperator for short message management services (SM5)
over the Internet, as well as any other activity related to the aforementioned corporate purpose.

¢) Activities of the Group Companies

Main activity of the subsidiaries consists in the provision of telecommunications services, the
development of programs, the sending of text messages and electronic mail, and the provision
of study services and analysis of computer processes in general.

d) Legal System of the Parent Company

Parent Company is governed by its Articles of Association and by the cwrent Corporate
Enterprises Act.



Irderime Congolidated Finaneiol Statements of Group Lizidanervorks Servels Telematics, 5.4, and Subsidiaries
S the six-month peviod ended on Jine 30, 2022 &

¢) Quotation in Stocks Markets

On | June 2015, the Parenl Company approved at the General Sharcholders' Meeting the
application to list all the shares of the Parent Company on the Alternative Equity Market
(MABR), currently called BME Growth.

On 7 October 2015, the Board of Directors of Bolsas y Mercados Espafioles, Sistemas de
Negociacion, S.A., approved the inclusion of 16,049,943 shares with a par value of 0.02 euros
each in the expanding companies’ segment of the Mercado Alternativo Bursétil with effect from
9 October 2015, The Parent Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers Asesores de
Negocios. S.L. as Registered Advisor and BEKA Finance, 8.V, S.A. as Liquidity Provider, On
7 November 2015, the Parent Company changed its Registered Advisor, appointing GVC
GAESCO VALORES SV, S.A, On 19 December 2018, the Parent Company was listed as a
dual listing on Buronext Growth Paris, with Invest Securities as Listing Sponsor and Liquidity
Provider. On 2 November 2020, the Company was listed on the OTCQX market in NewYork.
On 29 September 2021, the Parent Company changed its liquidity provider, appointing
Solventis A.V., $.A. as its Liquidity Provider. On June 14, 2022, the Parent changed its
Registered Advisor, appointing Solventis A.V., S.A. as Registered Advisor.

1.1) Group Companies

The Parent Company holds, directly, investments in different national and international
companies, and controls, directly, these companies. On January 1%, 2016 the first consolidation
of the Group Companies was carried out.

Group Companies included in the Consolidation Perimeter

The breakdown of the Group Companies included in the consolidation perimeter as of June 30,
2022 is the following:

Percentage Applied Method of

of Holding Consolidation
Group Llcidanetworks Serveis Telembtics, S.A,
which maintains the following investments:
Lieidanetworks Serveis Telematics, LTD 10 Cilobal intczration
Lligidanet TISA Inc 100 Global integration
LEeidanet Honduras, 54 T4 Global Integration
Ligidanet Dominicans, SRL 99, U8% Global integration
Llcida 5A5 | (e ilobal integration
Llzida Chile SPA, 100 Clohal integration
Lieidanet do Brasil Lida O, B0 Citobal integration
Llgidanst Guatemala B0%0 Global imtegration
Portabifidades Espafiolas, S.1L.11, 106% Global integration
Lleidanet Costa Rica 1005 (Flobal integration
Llcidanet Peri A {ilobal integration
Lleida Information Technology Network Seevices A9% Global inlegration
Llgidanet South Africa IR Global inlegration
Lleidanct SAAS Middle Fast and Africa DMOC 10054 CGlobal integration
Indenova, 5.L.1L iR Glabal integration
Lleidanet India 25% Equity method

The financial year of the Parent Company and the Subsidiaries begins on Ist of January and
ends on 31st of December of each year. The last Annual Accounts of the Parent Company and
its Subsidiaries drawn up correspond to the financial year ended on December 31, 2021.



Pterin Consalidated Financim! Statements of Group Liidanetworks Seeveis Telemdatics, 8.4, and Subsidiaries
for the six-month period enced on Jume 30, 2022 o

Detail of activities and registered office of the Subsidiaries included in the perimeter of
consolidation as of June 30, 2022, is indicated below:

Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, L'TD

Incorporated on December 28, 2005 in Dublin, with its registered office in Birchin Court 20,
Birchin Lane London (United Kingdom). Its main activity is as operator,

Lleidanet USA Inc.

Incorporated on May 12, 2009 and its registered office is at 2719 Hollywood Boulevard Street
21 FL33020, Hollywood. Its main activily is as operator. On June 30, 2013 a capital increase
was made in Lleidanet USA Ine. for 397.515,00 euros which Liecidanetworks Serveis
Telematics, S.A. subscribed in entirely.

Lleidanet Honduras, S.A.

Its registered office in Tegucigalpa (Honduras), it was incorporated on January 11, 2012
subseribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 175 shares out of a total amount of 250
that were issued. Its main activity consists on being SMS operator, based on an interconnection

network with the fixed and mobile operations of the Republic of Honduras,

Lieidanet Dominicana, S.R.L.

Headquartered in Santo Domingo (Dominican Republic), was incorporated on June 26, 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 4,999 shares of a total of 5.000 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the dissemination of telematics systems, On 28 December
2020, an increase in capital of 14.000 new shares subscribed in full by Llegidanetworks Serveis
Telematics, S.A. was approved.

Lleida SAS

With its registered office in Bogotd (Colombia), it was incorporated on November 16, 2012
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 100 shares out of a total of 100 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the dissemination of telematics systems. On June 15,2019
a capital increase was carried out in Lleida, SAS for an amount of 95.802 euros which
Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. subscribed in full. On 30 December 2020, a capital
increase was carried out in Lleida SAS in the amount of 48.000 euros, subscribed in full by
Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A.

Lleida Chile SPA

With its registered office in Santiago (Chile), it was incorporated on March 12, 2013,
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, SA, 200 shares out of a total of 200 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the provision, organization and commercialization of
telecommunications services,
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Lleida Networks India Private Limited

With its registered office in New Delhi (India), it was incorporated on January 7, 2013
subseribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 12.500 shares out of a total of 50,000
that were issued. [ts main activity is the creation of a telecommunications operator in India, as
well as offering VAS services, including SMS, MMS, and UMS and other types of messaging.

Lleidanet do Brasil Lida

With its registered office in Sao Paulo (Brazil), it was incorporated on October 2, 2013
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 329 shares out of a total of 330 that were
issued. Its main activity is based on the provision of telecommunication services, program
development, sending of text messages and electronic mail and the provision of services of
study and analysis of computer processes in general.

Lleidanet Guatemala, Sociedad Andnima

With its registered office in Guatemala (Guatemala), it was incorporated on November 7, 2013
subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A., 4.800 shares out of a total of 6.000
issued. Its main activity is the provision, organization and commercialization of
telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging services (SMS and MMS),
carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information and communication
technologies and the provision of consulting and advisory services on these matters.

Portabilidades Espafiolas, S.A.

Incorporated on December 4, 2015, subscribing, Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics S.A.,
representing 100% of the share capital of 3.000 shares for a total value of euros 3.000. Its
corporate purpose is the commercialization of services based on numerical portability data to
telecommunications opetators for the routing of telephone traffic and short text messages.
During 2019 vear, a capital increase was carried out for a total value of 10.000 euros, fully
subscribed by Lleidanet Serveis Telematics, S5.A.

Lleidanet Costa Rica Empresa Individual de Responsabilidad Limitada

On March 31, 2016, the Parent Company acquires [). Francisco José Sapena Soler 100% of this
Company for the amount of 16.06 euros. Its main activity is the provision, organization and
commercialization of telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging
services (SMS and MMS), carriers, ete., the creation, generation and exploitation of information
and communication technologies and the provision of consulting and advisory services on these
matters.
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Lleidanet Peri

On August 25, 2016, the Parent Company made a contribution of 268,09 euros for the
incorporation of said company. Its main activity is the provision, organization and
commercialization of telecommunication services and activities such as mobile messaging
services (SMS and MMS), carriers, etc., the creation, generation and exploitation of information
and communication technologies and the provision of consulting and advisory services on these
matters. On 21 February 2020 and 28 December 2020, capital increases were carried out by
offsetting receivables from the Parent Company for amounts of EUR 104.283 and EUR 33.637,
respectively. On 20 December 2021, a capital increase of Euros 44.309,84 was carried out by
offsetting receivables from the Parent company.

Lleida Information Technology Network Services

On October 1, 2020, the Company establishes the company in the United Arab Emirates
together with the partner Adil Ismail Ali Al Fahem, with a share capital of 300 shares of which
147 are subscribed by Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A. and that correspond o 49% of
the capital stock of the incorporated company.

Lleidanet South Africa

On September 21, 2020, the Group incorporated Lleidanet South Africa by subscribing 100%
of the shares of this company.

Lleidanet SAAS Middle East and Africa DMCC

On April 8, 2021, the Group incorporated, in Dubai, Lleidanet SAAS Middle East and Africa
DMCC, subscribing 100% of the shares of this company.

Indenova. S.L..1.

On 30 November 2021, the Company acquires 100% of the shares of Indenova, S.L.U. for a
cost of 7.100.000,00 suras.
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NOTE 2. PRESENTATION BASIS OF INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

a) True and Fair View

The accompanying Interim Consolidated Financial Statements as of June 30, 2022 have been
prepared on the basis of the accounting records of the various companies comprising the Group,
whose respective Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with prevailing mercantile
legislation and the rules established in the General Accounting Plan approved by Royal Decree
1514/2007, of 16 November, applying the amendments made thereto by Royal Decree
1159/2010, of 17 September, and Royal Decree 602/2016, of 2 December and Royal Decree
1/2021, of 12 January, in the case of Spanish companies. and in accordance with the regulations
applicable in the other countries where the companies comprising the Consolidated Group are
located, and are presented in accordance with the provisions of Royal Decree 1159/2010 of 17
September, in order to give a true and fair view of the consolidated net worth, financial position
and results, as well as the veracity of the flows included in the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement.

b) Presentation Currency

In accordance with the applicable laws and regulations on accounting, the Interim Consolidated
Financial Statements are expressed in euros.

¢) Critical Aspects of Uncertainties Valuation and Estimation

In preparing the accompanying consolidated interim financial statements, estimates were made
by the Parent Company’s Board of Directors in order to measure certain of the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses reported herein, The estimates and judgements relate to:

- Reasonableness of capitalisation and recoverability of research projects.

- Reasonableness of the recognition and recoverability of goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Indenova, S.1.LL

Although these estimates have been made on the basis of the best information available at the
end of the six months ended 30 June 2022, it is possible that events that may oceur in the future
may make it necessary to modify (upwards or downwards) in future years, which would be
done prospectively, recognising the effects of the change in estimate in the corresponding profit
and loss account.

The Parent Company's Board of Directors considers that there are no significant uncertainties
or aspects about the future that could entail a significant risk that could lead to significant
changes in the value of assets and liabilities in the following year.
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d) Comparison of the Information

In accordance with commercial legislation, the Board of Direclors presents, for comparative
purposes with each of the balance sheet items, in addition to the figures for the six months ended
30 June 2022, the figures for the previous year. It also presents, for comparative purposes with
each of the items in the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement, in addition to the figures for the six months ended
30 June 2022, the figures for the six months ended 30 June 2021, The items for both years are
comparable and homogeneous.

¢) Responsibility for the Information given and the Estimates made

For the preparation of the Consolidated Annual Accounts estimates have been used in order to
value some of the assets, liabilities, incomes, expenses and compromises that are registered,
and that, basically, these estimations are referred to the evaluation of losses by impairment of
cerlain assets, the useful life of non-current assets and the probability of occwrrence of
provisions (see section ¢).

In November 2021, following the acquisition of the company Indenova, S.L., goodwill of 4.7
million euros has been generated. Indenova's main assets are its assets, as reflected in its balance
sheet. Indenova has a brand image that is recognised both nationally and internationally, and a
recurring customer base that values its services. Its R&D developments will enable new uses
of its services, not only for its customer base, but will also be a differentiating element in the
Group's R&D strategy. They have key personnel, who will remain within the Lleida.net Group
and will be members of the management committee and will help to meet the objectives set by
the Board of Directors of the Group's Parent Company. With the acquisition of Indenova,
synergies in sales are achieved, given that Indenova and the other companies of the Group have
very few shared customers. Indenova will be able to increase its sales by selling its products to
Lleida.net customers.

The Parent Company's Board of Directors has not considered it necessary to recognise any
impairment of this goodwill on the basis of the expectations of positive cash flow generation
forecast for the coming years by this investee company.

In order to analyse the recoverability of the aforementioned assets, cash flows based on sales
projections for the period 2022-2026 have been used. According to management, these
projections are based on the 2020 result, the 2021 budget and management's best expectations
for the business until 2026 for the corresponding impairment analysis as of 31 December 2022,

Sales growth of 1.5% until 2026 has been estimated. Cash flows have also been discounted
using the average cost of funds afler tax. The discount rate used was 10,5%.,

Notwithstanding that these estimates were made according to the best information available at
the time of the preparation of these Consolidated Annual Accounts, it is possible that future
events may occur that require their amendment for the next financial years, which would be
carried out prospectively, taking account of the effects of the estimate change on the
corresponding profit and loss accounts,

f) Changes in accounting criteria

Mo changes in accounting policies have been made,
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g) Correction of Errors

The Interim Consolidated Financial Statements for the period ended as of June 30, 2022 do not
include related adjustments as a result of errors detected in previous years' annual accounts or
financial statements.

h) Fair value

It is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer ot settle a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value shall
he determined without any deduction for transaction costs that might be incurred due to disposal
or disposition by other means. In no case shall the fair value result from a forced or urgent
transaction or as a consequence of an involuntary liquidation situation.

Fair value is estimated for a particular date and, because market conditions may change over
time, that value may be inappropriate for another date, In addition, in estimating fair value, an
enterprise should take into account the conditions of the asset or liability that market
participants would take into account in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date,

In estimating fair value, it is assumed that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
is carried out:

a) Between interested and duly informed parties, in an arm's length transaction,

b) In the main market of the asset or liability, understood as the market with the highest
volume and level of activity, or

¢} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market to which the
company has access for the asset or liability, understood as the one that maximizes the
amount that would be received for the sale of the asset or minimizes the amount that
would be paid for the transfer of the liability, afler taking into account transaction costs
and transportation expenses.

In general, fair value is calculated by reference to a reliable market value.

For those items for which there is no active market, the fair value will be obtained, where
appropriate, through the application of valuation models and techniques.

The fair value of a financial instrument must consider, among other things, the credit risk and,
in the specific case of a financial liability, the company's default risk, which includes, among
other components, its own credit risk. However, no adjustments for volume or market capacity
should be made to estimate the fair value.
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NOTE 3. RECOGNITION AND VALUATION STANDARDS

The principal valuation standards used by the Group in the drafting of its Interim Consolidated
Financial Statements on June 30, 2022, in accordance with those established by the General
Accounting Plan, were as follows:

a) Consolidation Principles

The consolidation of the Financial Statements of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, S.A.
with the Financial Statements of its investee companies mentioned in Notes 1.2 and 2, was
carried out using the following methods:

I.  Application of the global integration method for all Group companies, i.e. those over which
it as effective control.

2. Application of the equity method as equivalence for associated companies, i.e. those over
which a notable influence is exercised in terms of management bul in which there is no
majority vote or joint management with third parties.

The consolidation of the operations of Lleidanetworks Serveis Telematics, 8.A. with those of
the aforementioned subsidiaries was performed according to the following basic principles:

1

The criteria used in formulation of the Balance Sheets, the Profit and Loss Account and the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash-Flow Statements for each one of the consolidated
companies are, generally, and in their basic aspects, homogenous.

- The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
include all adjustments and eliminations of the consolidation process, as well as relevant
valuation homogenizations to reconcile balances and transactions between the consolidating
companies.

- Balances and (ransactions between consolidated companies were eliminated in the
consolidation process. The credits and debts with group, aftiliated and associated companies
which have been excluded from the consolidation are presented in the corresponding
headings of the assets and liabilities headings of the Consolidated Balance Sheet,

- The deletion of Subsidiary equity investment was conducted by compensating the
shareholding of the Parent Company with the proportional part of the net equity of the
subsidiaries which is represented by the shareholding on the date of the first consolidation.
The first consolidation differences were treated as follows:

a)  Positive differences which cannot be allocated to the equity elements of the
Subsidiaries were included in the "Consolidation Goodwill" heading of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The impairment losses must be recognized in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and are irreversible

b)  Negative differences. obtained as first consolidation, are recognized as reserves for the
year considering that the group already existed previously in the different subgroups
contributed to the Parent Company.
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- The consolidated income for the financial year shows the part that may be attributed to the
Parent Company, comprised of the income obtained by the latter plus the corresponding part,
by virtue of the financial shareholding, of the income obtained by the invested companies

- The sharcholding value of the minority interests in the equity and the attribution of income
in the consalidated subsidiarics is presented in the “Minority Interest” heading of the Equity
of the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The value breakdown of these shareholdings is presented
in Note 4.

b) Intangible Fixed Assets

Assets included in intangible fixed assets are valued by their cost, whether purchase price or
production cost, reduced by the corresponding accumulated amortization and losses from any
impairment which, where appropriate, has occurred.

The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful
life. The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss.

Research and Development Costs

Capitalized research and development costs are specifically individualized for projects and their
costs are clearly established so they can be spread over time. Similarly, Management the Group
has substantial grounds for expecting the technical success and the financial and commercial
profitability of these projects

Research and development costs that appear as assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their useful life, at an annual rate of 20%, and always within a period of 5 years.

As soon as there are reasonable doubts over the technical success or financial and commercial
profitability of a project, the values recorded in the asset that apply to it are directly allocated
to the financial year's losses,

Computer Applications

Licenses for computer applications purchased from third parties are capitalized on the basis of
the costs incurred for purchasing. Computer applications are amortized on a straight-line basis
throughout their useful lives, at an annual rate of 33%.

Maintenance expenses for computer applications incurred during the financial year are
recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account.

Indnstrial Property

Corresponds to the capitalized development expenses for which the relevant patent or similar
has been obtained, and includes the registration and formalization costs for the industrial
property, as well as the costs for purchasing the corresponding rights from third parties.
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During all these years, the Group has been able to develop methods and unique technologies in
its sector by continuous investment in research and development. The result of this effort has
heen the publication of patents at European, American and PCT levels, putting in value the
effort developed during these last years. These patents allow the Group to license this
technology to third parties and protect it against possible copies of other actors in the sector,
less serupulous when creating original models,

¢) Tangible Fixed Assets

Tangible fixed assets are valued by their acquisition price or production cost, net of the
corresponding accumulated amortization and, where appropriate, of the accumulated value of
the recognized allowances for impairment.

Repair and maintenance expenses incurred during the financial year are debited in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, Costs for renovating, extending or improving intangible
fixed assets, representing an increase in capacity, productivity or lengthening of useful life, are
capitalized as a higher value of the corresponding assets, once the book values of the replaced
items have been de-recognized.

Tangible fixed assets, net of their residual value, where appropriate, are amortized by a straight-
line-basis distribution of the vatious items that constitute these fixed assets over the years of
estimated useful life making up the period in which the Group hopes to use them, according to
the following table:

Annual Estimated Years
Percentage ~of Useful Life

Buildings 2,50 4
Technical facilities 8-10 12,50 10
Machinery 20-25 5-4

Other installations 10 8}
Furniture =13 10— 6,57
Computer equipment 25-50 4-2

Other tangible fixed assets L5 6,067

The book value of a tangible fixed-asset item is de-recognized in the accounts through its
alienation or disposal by other means: or where no future economic benefits or profits are
expected to be obtained for its use, alienation or disposal by other means.

The loss or profit resulting from writing-off a tangible fixed-asset item is determined as the
difference between the net values, where appropriate, of the sales cosls resulting from its
alienation or disposal by other means, where available, and the item's bool value, and is
allocated to the Consclidated Profit and Loss Account for the financial year in which this
OCCUrs.

At the financial year's closure, the Group, assesses whether there are signs of impairment in a
tangible fixed-asset item or any cash-generating unit, in which case the recoverable amounts
are estimated and the necessary allowances are made.
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An impairment loss is deemed to have oceurred in a tangible fixed-asset item where its book
value exceeds its recoverable value, this being understood as the higher value between its fair
value less the sales costs and its value in use.

Allowances for impairment in the tangible fixed-asset items, as well as their reversals where
the circumstances producing them cease, are recognized as an expense or income respectively
in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account.

d) Leases and Other Transactions of a Similar Nature

Operating-lease expenses incurred during the financial year are debited in the Consolidated
Profit and Loss Account.

¢) Financial Instruments

A financial assel is any asset that is: cash. an equity instrument of another company, or involves
a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset (a debt instrument), or to exchange
financial assets or liabilities with third parties on potentially favourable terms.

The financial assets used by the Group are classified for valuation purposes in one of the
following categories:

1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
2. Financial assets at amortised cost.

3. Financial assets at fair value with changes in equity.
4, Financial assets at cost.

Financial instruments issued, incurred or assumed are classified as financial liabilities, in whole
or in part, if, based on their economic substance, they create a direct or indirect contractual
obligation for the Company to deliver cash or another financial asset, or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with third parties on potentially unfavourable terms.

The financial liabilities used by the Group are classified for valuation purposes in one of the
following categories:

I. Financial liabilities at amortised cost.
2. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group has no financial liabilities at fair value,

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is included in this category, even when it is admitted to trading on an organised
market, if the company holds the investment for the purpose of receiving cash flows from the
performance of the contract and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, at specified
dates. to cash flows that are solely collections of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Contractual cash flows that are solely collections of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are inherent in an arrangement that is in the nature of a regular or ordinary
loan, notwithstanding that the transaction is arranged at a zero or below-market interest rate.

The following are classified in this category:

a) Trade receivables: financial assets arising from the sale of goods and the rendering of
services in the ordinary course of business for which payment is deferred, and

b) Non-trade receivables: financial assets which, not being equity instruments or derivatives,
do not arise from trade transactions and whose collections are of a fixed or determinable
amount,

Financial Assets at Fair Yalue Through Sharcholders' Equity

A financial asset is included in this category when the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise, at specified dates, to cash flows that are solely collections of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, and it is neither held for trading nor classified as a financial
assel at amortised cost. Investments in equity instruments for which an irrevocable option is
exercised at the initial time to present subsequent changes in fair value directly in equity are
also included in this category.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The following are classified in this category:

a) Trade payables: financial liabilities arising from the purchase of goods and services in
connection with trading transactions; and

b) Non-trade payables: financial liabilities which, not being derivative instruments, do not
arise from trade transactions, but arise from loans or credits received by the Company.

The financial assets and liabilities included in this category are initially measured at fair value,
which is the transaction price and is equal to the fair value of the consideration given plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

Notwithstanding the above, trade receivables and payables maturing in less than one year that
do not bear contractual interest rates, as well as, where applicable, advances and loans to
employees, dividends receivable and payments required on equity instruments, the amount of
which is expected to be received in the short term, and payments required by third parties on
equity investments, the amount of which is expected to be paid in the short term, are measured
at nominal value when the effect of not discounting cash [lows is not material.

In subsequent valuations, both assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost. Acerued
interest is recognised in the profit and loss account using the effective interest method,
Notwithstanding the above, reccivables and payables maturing within one year that were
initially measured at nominal value continue to be measured at nominal value, unless, in the
case of receivables, they are impaired.
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At least at year-end, the necessary impairment losses are recognised whenever there is objective
evidence that a financial asset, or a group of financial assets with similar risk characteristics
measuted collectively, is impaired as a result of one or more events that occurred after its initial
recognition and that cause a reduction or delay in the estimated future cash flows, which may
be caused by the insolvency of the debtor.

As indicated in note 11.1) the main credit risk arises from trade balances, with potential
impairments being estimated on a customer-by-customer basis.

The amount of the valuation adjustment is the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

The estimated future cash flows of a debt instrument are all the amounts, principal and interest,
that the company estimates it will earn over the life of the instrument. The estimate considers
all relevant information available at the date of the interim financial statements that provides
information about the collectability of future contractual cash flows.

When instruments are secured by collateral and personal guarantees, the cash flows that would
be realised, less the amount of costs required Lo obtain and subsequently sell the collateral, are
included, regardless of the likelihood of realisation.

In calculating the present value of the estimated future cash flows, the original effective interest
rate of the financial asset is used as the discount rate.

The recognition of interest on credit-impaired financial assets shall follow the general rules,
without prejudice to the simultancous assessment by the company of whether the amount will
be recoverable and, if so, the recognition of the corresponding impairment loss.

The impairment loss so calculated shall be recognised in the profit'and loss account,

If, in subsequent periods, the amount of the impairment loss decreases, the previously
recognised impairment loss shall be reversed. The reversal shall not result ina carrying ameunt
of the financial asset that exceeds the amortised cost that would have been recognised at the
date of reversal had no impairment loss been recognised. The amount of the reversal shall be
recognised in profit ot loss.

Own Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any legal arrangement that evidences, or reflects, a residual interest in
the assets of the issuing enterprise afler deducting all of its liabilities.

In the event that the company enters into any transaction with its own equity instruments, the
amount of these instruments shall be recorded in equity as a change in equity, and in no case
may they be recognised as financial assets of the company and no profit or loss shall be recorded
in the profit and loss account.

FExpenses arising from these transactions, including the costs of issuing these instruments, such
as lawyers', notaries' and registrars' fees; printing of reports, bulletins and securities; taxes;
adverlising; commissions and other placement expenses, shall be recorded directly in equity as
a reduction in reserves.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset, or part of a financial asset, is derecognised when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire or have been transferred, and the risks and rewards
of ownership have been substantially transferred,

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the related obligation is extinguished,

Interest and Dividends Received on Financial Assets

Interest and dividends on financial assets accrued after the time of acquisition shall be
recognised as income in the profil and loss account.

Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost shall be recognised using the effective
interest method and dividends when the member's right to receive them is declared.

For this purpose, on initial measurement of financial assets, the amount of explicit interest
acerued but not yet due at that time and the amount of dividends declared by the competent
bady at the time of acquisition shall be recognised separately on a maturity basis.

Explicit interest” shall be understood to be that which is obtained by applying the contractual
interest rate of the financial instrument, In addition, if the dividends distributed unequivocally
arise from profits generated prior to the acquisition date because amounts in excess of the profits
generated by the investee since acquisition have been distributed, they are not recognised as
income and reduce the carrying amount of the investment.

Bonds Given and Received

For deposits given or received under operating leases or for the provision of services, the
difference between the fair value of the deposit and the amount paid (for example, because the
deposit is long-term and is not interest-bearing) is treated as an advance payment or collection
for the lease or provision of the service, and shall be taken to profit or loss over the period of
the lease in accordance with paragraph 2 of the standard on leases and similar transactions or
over the period in which the service is rendered in accordance with the standard on revenue
from sales and services.

f) Transactions in Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized by their exchange value in Euros, by using
the spot exchange-rate for the dates on which they occur.

On the close of each financial year, monetary items are valued by applying the average spot
exchange-rate on that date, Exchange differences, both positive and negative, which result from
this process, as well as those generated on selling off equity items, are recognized in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the financial year in which they arise.
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g) Profit Tax

Profit tax is recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account or directly in the
Consolidated Equity depending on where the gains or losses giving rise to it are recognized.
Profit tax for each financial year includes both current and deferred taxes, where appropriate.

The current tax amount is the sum to be paid by the companies as a result of the assessment
notices for the tax.

Differences between the book value of assets and liabilities, and their tax base, generate the
deferred tax asset or liability tax balances which are calculated using the expected tax rates al
the time of their reversal, and under the method in which it can be reasonably expected to
recover or pay the asset or liability,

Variations arising during the financial year in deferred tax asset or liability are recognized either
in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account or directly in the Consolidated Equity. as
appropriate,

Deferred tax assets are only recognized insofar as it is probable that the Group will have future
tax gains that allow these assets to be applied.

In each closing balance sheet the book valug of the recognized deferred tax assets is analyzed
and the necessary adjustments are made insofar as there are doubts over their future tax
recoverability. Likewise, in each closing non-recognized deferred taxes are assessed in the
balance sheet and these are subject to recognition to the extent that their recovery with future
tax benefits is probable.

h) Income

An entity shall recognise revenue in the ordinary course of business when control of the goods
or services committed to customers is transferred. At that time, the enterprise shall measure
revenue at the amount that reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

In order to apply this fundamental approach to revenue recognition, the Company follows a
comprehensive process consisting of the following successive steps:

a)  Identify the contract(s) with the customer, understood as an agreement between two or
more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations for the parties.

b)  Identify the obligation(s) to be fulfilled in the contract, representing commitments to
transfer goods or provide services to a customer,

¢}  Determine the transaction price, or contract consideration, to which the firm expects to
be entitled in exchange for the transfer of goods or provision of services committed to the
CUStOImer,
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d)  Allocate the transaction price to the obligations to be performed on the basis of the
individual selling prices of each separate good or service committed to in the contract or,
where appropriate, on the basis of an estimate of the selling price when the selling price
is not independently observable.

¢)  Recognise revenue when (as) the company satisfies a committed obligation through the
transfer of a good or the rendering of a service; such satisfaction occurs when the
customer obtains control of that good or service, so that the amount of revenue recognised
is the amount allocated to the contractual obligation satistied.

For each obligation to be fulfilled (delivery of goods or provision of services) identified, the
Company determines at the beginning of the contract whether the commitment undertaken is
fulfilled over time or at a specific point in lime. As specified in note 15, the invoicing issued by
the Company is based on customer consumption of each product.

Fulfilment of the obligation at a specific point in time

In cases where the transfer of control over the asset does not occur over time, the Company
recognises revenue using the criteria established for obligations that ave discharged at a point
in time. To identify the specific point in time at which the customer obtains control of the asset
(generally an asset), the Company considers, among others, the following indicators:

a) The customer assumes the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. In
assessing this, the Company excludes any risk that gives rise to a separate obligation
other than a commitment to transfer the asset.

b) The Company has transferred physical possession of the asset.

¢} The customer has received (accepted) the asset in accordance with the contractual
specifications.

d) The company has a collection right for transferring the asset.
) The customer has ownership of the asset.
Valuation

Revenue from the sale of goods and the rendering of services is measured at the monetary
amount or, where appropriate, the fair value of the consideration received or expected to be
received, which, in the absence of evidence to the contrary, is the agreed price of the assets to
be transferred to the customer, less: the amount of any discounts, rebates or other similar items
that the company may grant; and interest included in the nominal amount of the receivables.

However, embedded interest on trade receivables maturing in less than one year that do not
have a contractual interest rate is included when the effect of not discounting cash flows is not
material, If applicable

Taxes levied on the delivery of goods and services that the company must pass on to third
parties, such as value added tax and excise duties, as well as amounts received on behalf of
third parties, are not part of revenue.
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Where variable consideration exists, the Company takes into account in the measurement of
revenue the best estimate of the variable consideration if it is highly probable that there will not
be a significant reversal of the amount of revenue recognised when the uncertainty associated
with the consideration is subsequently resolved.

i) Provisions and Contingencies

Debentures existing at the close of the financial year, resulting from past events which may
occasion loss in equity for the Group, and whose value and time of cancellation are
indeterminate, are recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as provisions and are valued
by the current value of the best possible estimate for the amounl necessary lo cancel the
obligation or transfer it to a third party.

i) Grants, Donations and Legacies

Non-refundable capital grants, as well as donations and legacies, are valued by the fair value of
the amount granted or of the goods received. They are initially allocated directly as income in
the Consolidated equity and recognized in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account in
propertion to the amortization undergone over the period by the assets financed through these
grants, unless these are non-depreciable assets, in which case they will be allocated to the
earnings of the financial year in which their alienation or de-recognition takes place.

Grants intended for cancelling debts are allocated as income for the financial year in which the
cancellation occurs, unless they are received for a specific financing, in which case the

allocation is made according to the item that is financed.

Refundable grants are recognized as long-term debt convertible into subsidies until they become
non-refundable,

Operation grants are credited to the earnings of the financial year when they accrue.

k) Related-Party Transactions

In peneral, items forming the subject matter of a related-party transaction are initially
recognized by their fair value. The subsequent valuation is made in accordance with the
provisions laid down in the corresponding regulations.

1) Cash-Flow Statements

Cash-flow statements use the following expressions according to the meanings given below:

Cash and Equivalents: Cash is both cash in hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalenls are
financial instruments forming part of the Group’s normal cash management, are convertible
into cash, have initial maturities no greater than three months and are subject to little significant
risk of change in their value.

being understood as investments having terms under three months, high liquidity and low risk
of changes in value.
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Operating Activities: these are the activities that make up the principal source of the Group’s
ordinary income, as well as other activities that cannot be classified under investment or
financing.

[nvestment Activities: acquisition, alienation or disposal by other means of long-term assets
and other investments not included in cash or cash equivalents.

Financing Activities: activities that lead to changes in the size and compesition of the equity
and financial liabilities.

NOTE 4. MINORITY INTEREST

The breakdown of the value of minority interests in the equity of the consolidated subsidiaries
as of June 30, 2022 is as follows, in Euros:

Fereentage of

niinority
interests 1
. . sharcholders . Total Minority
Faroup Compary. {holdings) ‘Equity. JOhers; Period results  interests
L lzidanel Guatemala 200 404250 (263,84) - 155,73
Llgitdonel Honduras 30% = - = .
I lzidanel Brasil 0.01% (1 163,82) La3d.49 (42, 14) {3.96)
Llewdanet Repiblica Dominicana 0,02% (8,772,98) 1037730 393,04 0,40
Lleida Information
Technology Metwork Services 51% (74.803,1T) {12.893,62) (A2.568,00 1 60.4.35,040)

(65.682,87)

The breakdown of the value of minorily interests in the equity of the consolidated subsidiaries
at the year end 2021 was as follows, in Euros:

Percentage of
minprity
- dnterests W 8
) sharcholders . _ ‘Total Minority
| Group Company. {holdings) Equity Others Peripd vesults nterests |

Ligidanel Guatematn 20% 4,0:42.50 (524.094) - 703,51
Lleidanct Honduzas Bl - 5 - -
Licidane! Brasil 0,01% {38.909,84) T.203,12 (2.253,98) (3,400
Lleidanet Repiiblica Dominicana 0,02% (9.004,54) T34.21 241,56 (161}
Llsida Information Technology
Metwork Serviees (*) 51% (45751 7.120,79 (T0.228.05) (245 1R,00)

(33.819,51)
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NOTE 5. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

The detail and movement of Intangible Fixed Assets for the six-month period ended as of June
30, 2022 is as follows, in euros:

Cost:

Gondwill on conzolidation

Reacarch

Indusiral Property

Computer gpplications

Advances Tor intangible Nxed assets

Accwmuliated amortization:
Goodwill en consolidation
Hesearch

Indluatrial Property
Computer applications

Intnngible Fixed Assety, Net

The details and changes in intangible fixed assets throughout the financial year

follows, in euros:

Crnsis

Goodwill on consabidation
Hesearch

Indusirinl Propariy

Comtputer applications

Advomees for intangible fixed agsats

Accumulated amortization:
Gioodwill on eonenlidation
Tesearch

Industrial Propenty
Computes spplicatisns

Tntangible Fixed Assels, Nel

3tz

4,688 429,58
|2372.277.80
L.0S4.272,10

532126891
58744281

24.023,691,20
(15, 140,49)
(10095241 70
(389 147,55)
(3,479 635,56)
(12,992,165 30)

11.031.525,90

Addditidns

6L T43,12

52.602.50
4360138

699127409
(234.421 44)
(A09.574,15)

{41 97557}
(251,521,1%)
(937,512,13)

(235385, 04)

‘De-Reeognition

(32.323,70)

(F2.323,70)

(32323, 70)

Transfers

5536761
2505490
(80.432,51)

AL [ilitions Addbifiane’ De-Recognition . Teansfers
- AABE A2 5K -

1164934574 - 722931056 : =
QAR218.54 - 14,535,680 { B-935.60 136,053 56
27066109 462795101 455.5407,44 {32.890.63) =
564399 48 - 155243 .81 (9. 14632) 126,003,560

1341262085 0.316,380,59 135165881 (86.973,15)

- = (781 40y . )
{280,092 85} - (815 148,75} -
0T I752) - {51.430.43) - =
(BTA008L)  (1426.405.70) (794321 62} 3289063

[(LEZSA1E28) (L3066 460  (1.T69.040,65) 31.590,63 "

3,585.013,57 3, 189.289.55 {417.341,98) {24.042,52) -

INGZ0EE

4648479 58
12975020 92
I.108.639,71
54800 16,40
S8 IRT 98

24.600,494.50
(312.561,97)
(10504 B35, 85)
(43112282}
(2.681.156,69)
(13.929.677.43)

10, 760.817,16

- 2021 were as

R A

i.688.429 58
12372277 80
1.0654.272,10
532126851
SBT 442,81

24.023,691,20
(7814048
(10.095.241,70}
(189,147,535}
[2:429,635,56)
(12.992.155.30)

1103152590
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Fully-amortized and in-use items

The breakdown, by epigraphs. of the most significant assets which were fully-amortised and in
use as of June 30, 2022 and at December 31, 2021, is the following, stating their cost values in

FEuros:

Research
Patenls
Computer applications

NOTE 6. TANGIBLE ASSETS

The detail and changes of tangible fixed assets for year six-month period ended on June 30,

2022, is the following, in euros:

Cost:

Land and butldings

Technical mstatiations amd machinery
Other instaliations, tools and fuminge
Lk processing eguipment

Other tangibie fixed asseis

Actvaness for tungible fixed asseis

Aceumulated amortizstion:

Eand and buildings

Technical fnstallations end machinery
CHlser installations, tooks and Nueninee
Dt pencessing equipment

Oillier tangible fixed assats

Tangible Pixed Assets, Net

aif12i021

19718574
257 392,06
31092181
130391837
12.746,77
5738060

L1330 545,35
(49.380,53)
(253872 68)
(2E0.039,77)
(918,298 64)
(11,387,902
(1,512,979,54)

626,505,581

30/06/2022.

8.492.284,57
|08 806,51
LIBT. 114,48

9,988.205,50

Additions:

5,909,580
756,85
156,01

86,220,701

93,243,306

(2.547,5%)
(1352.22)
(3.356,94)
(B30 18260
(5140.46)

(R0.885.41)

2.357,95

De-Recognitinn

{3.522.80)
{230,63)

[3.756,72)

(3.756,72)

317122021

B.A92.284,57

1G8.806,51
L&Y 114,48

9,988.205,56

A0MIGR022

20309554
258, 148.91
LT R

1,386,615, 8

12,512,494
57,380,460

22203198
(5192806}
(255.224,50)
(28339671
(10041650
(11898 38)
(1,603, 564,55)

2516704
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The details and changes in tangible fixed assets throughout the financial year 2021 were as
follows, in euros:

Perimcter

! ANz “ailditinns Adiitiens Decrecognitions . Transfers 3122021
Cost:

Lol anel builelinga 19T 185,74 - - - K 19718574
Technieal mstalistions

il mnchinery A5TA02.06 - - - - 257,392,046
Other installations, .

tonks mnd fumiture 10611889 T2 uhl Ay 39 7 47 [30.29%,55) - G5 B30, 2R
Dt processing equipment Bl GROET 180.973,00 20.643,57 {300.267,54) - 915 000,90
Other tangible fixed nssets 44357 181098 = . o 12046, 37
Adlvances for tangibile fixed assets - . 5738060 . S FT.380.60

1.229.293.35 52174845 AGD,07 164 (566,00 - 113954535

Accumuolated mmartization:

Land and buikdmigs (4424323 . (5.137.30) - = (49 330,53)
Technical instollations

and machimery (246,191 35} - (7.681.33) - - (353,872 ,68)
Other inztaliations,

tnals and Furmiture (A0 TEY  (219.88530) {12.100,54) 265567 ; (28003977}
Dimtn processing: cguimheni (524, 340.02) (289.133,32) (162.678,71) S007ER 24 709317 TOFE 298,654 )
Oiliar angible fixed assets (348670 o, (10805 - [7.093.17) (11.347.92}

(H93.370,55) {500,791y (1B87.8467T,23) TLEI8.05 = {1LAT2.9749,54)

Tangible Fixed Assels, Ned A5 92T A0 12.725,74 B2, [3.287.14) = 62656581

Due o the increase in SaaS sales, investments have been made in servers for more storage
capacity. [nvestiments have also been made in laptops.

Fully-Amortized and in-Use ltems

The breakdown, by epigraphs, of the most significant assets which were fully-amortised and in
use as of June 30, 2022 and as of December 31, 2021, is shown below stating their cost values
in Euros:

3G 2022 3122021
Technical installations and machinery LRE.916,95 [E8.916,95
Other Facilities 174,620,584 | 74.620,84
Furnifure 121,693,235 B5,500,79
Diaa processing equipment G83.570,38 683,570,348
Oiher fived assets 3.087.87 308787

1.171.5%9,20 1.135.696,43

NOTE 7. LEASES AND OTHER OPERATIONS OF SIMILAR NATURE

7.1) Financial Leases (the Company as Lessee)

The Company has no assets financed by finance leases as of June 30, 2022,

7.2) Operating Leases (the Company as Lessee)

The charge to income for the six months ended on June 30, 2022 and the six months ended on
June 30, 2021 for operating leases amounted to 151.473,19 euros (98.612,13 euros for the six
months ended on June 30, 2021). This mainly corresponds to office rentals and vehicle rentals.
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The following is the breakdown of the total amount of the minimum future payments
corresponding to the non-cancellable operating leases:

2022 2021
Upto | year 25409230 225,464,778
Between | and 5 years 203.458,99 101.044,71
More of 5 years 535.377.54 524.545,.84
996.928,83 B55.355,33

NOTE 8. FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following is the breakdown of the long-term financial assets, in Euros:

Credits and Credits and

Liquity Equity — Others Others
instruments instruments  Pinancial Assels Fin ancial Assefy
- MNO62022 31122021 20062022 auzanz
Financinl assets al amortised cost (Note §.2) - - 56.871,04 55.652,30
Financial azyets at fair valuoe with
changes im equity {Note 8.3) 10,197,40 1. 197,40 - -
1L 197,40 1619740 S6.871,04 55.659,30

The breakdown of the short-term financial assets, is as follows, in euros:

Credits and Others — Credits and Others.

Finaneial Adsets Financial Assets
S0/06/2022 3rnaanzl
Assets at fair value through
the profit and loss: A061.800,78 5.056.742,82
Cash or other liguid asscts (Mate 8, 1) 1.961.860,78 5.056.742,82
Loans and receivable items {Mote 5.2) 5.616.322,68 5.2560.570,44
Total 9.578.183,46 1031332226

8.1) Assets at Fair Value through the Profit and 1.oss

Cash and other Equivalent Liquid Assets

The detail of these assets as of June 30, 2022 and as of December 31, 2021 is as follows, in
BUTOS:

Balance as of Balance as of

30/06/2022 31/12/2021
Current Accounts 3.953.683,60 5.008.191.36
Cash 4.177.00 48.551,46

Total 3.961.860,78 5,[056.742,82
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8.2) Financial assets at amortised cost

The composition of loans and receivable items as of June 30, 2022 and as of December 31,
2021 is at follows, in euros:

~ Balance as of 30/16/2022 ~ Balance as of 31/12/2021
Long-Term Short-Term Long-Term Short-Tern
Loang and receéivables items
for commercial transaclions
Third parly customers - 4.681.680,7T8 - 4.368.443.08
Third party deblors - 1628177 - 75.030,31
Total loans and receivables items
for commercial transactions - 4.B00.962,55 - 4.443.473,39
Lonns and receivables for
non-commiercial transactions
Staff - 3133813 - L.08d,05
Ehort-term deposits (%) - B12.022.00 . B12022.00
Securitics and deposits 6.871,04 - 3563930 -
Total loans and veceivables for
non-commercial transactions S6.871,04 #15.360,13 55.659,30 B13.106,05
Total 56.871,04 S.616.322,69 55.659,30 5.256.579,44

() Shari-tevm deposits have o maturife o shovi-term and aoerue a marked futerest rate.

Trade and other receivables include impairments due to insolvency risks, as detailed below:

i_nmunt_
Accumulated impairment end of financial year 2020 590.740,72
Impairment bosses on trade receivables 28,0933
Accumulated impairment end of financial year 2021 618.834,03
Impairment losses on trade receivables 126,23
Accamulated impairment as of June 30, 2022 618.960.26

8.3) Financial assets at fair value with changes in equity

Corresponds to the investment made by the Group in the company "IBAN Wallet", & global
platform that links investors and loan applicants, with leading rates for both. The investment
amounts to 10.197,40 euros and corresponds to 0,38% of the share capital.

There are no assets as collateral for loans.
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NOTE 9. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Detail of long-term financial liabilities, is as follows, in euros!

Debts with ervedit Others v
institotions liahilities Total

30M06/2022 31022021 30062022 3022021 300620220 311202021

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost (Note 9.1) 6.075.562,52  A.804.04841 163187612 L716.04803 7.707.438,64  S.610.096,44

Detail of short-term financial liabilities, is as follows, in curos:

Debts with credit Others
institutions. linbilities Total

300062022 3122020 30062022 31122021 30/06/2022 31122021

Finaneial liabilities nt
amortsed eost {(Note 9.1) 2300.614,40  1.940.259,31 558055248 5.557.322,54  7.980.16688 7.497.581,85

9.1) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The breakdown as of June 30, 2022 and as of December 31, 2021 is as follows, in euros:

Balance as of 30/06/2022 Balance as of 31/12/2021
Long-Tevm  Short-Term Long-Term Short-Term:

For commercial (ransactions:

Suppliers - | 180 886,98 - 1.222.378.07
Creditors - 1.523.642.90 - LA4TEO05,69
Advances from costumers - 131,324,445 - 11763228
Total balances for commercial transactions = 2.835.854,33 - 2.818.01 6,04

Far non-commercial operations:

Detws with credit institutions 6.075.562,52 2.300614,40 6, B0 8 41 [.9:40.255.31
Other debts |.631.E74,12 2.632.620,43 1.716.048,03 2625 100,20
Dehits and payable items T A38,64 5.0023.234,83 R G10,096,44 4.565.359,51
Staff {remuneration payable) . 121.077,72 - I 1420630

Total balances for _
non-commercial aperations T.707.438.64 5.144.312,55 S.010.096,44 4.679.5605,81

Tutal T.707.438,64 T.980. 166,58 5.610.096,44 T.497.581.85
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9.1.1) Debts with credit institutions

The breakdown of debts with credit institutions as of June 30, 2022 is as follows, in euros:

A Short-Term A Long-Term Tofal
Loans 1.972.321,62 6.075.562,52 8.047.884, 14
Credit policies 418.292.78 - 418.292.78

2.390.614,40 6.075.562,52 8.466,176,02

The breakdown of debts with credit institutions as of December 31, 2021 is as follows, in euros:

Short-Term Long-Term Total
Loans L.741,259.31 6,894, 048,41 8.635.307,72
Credit policies 1 99.000,00 - E99.000,00

1.941.259,31 6.804. 048,41 8.834.307,72

Loans

The detail of the bank loans as of June 30, 2022, expressed in Euros, is the following:

Loan Last maturity Initial amount Pending closing
Loan 24 () 15/10/2025 78.375,60 33.699,60
Loan 36 02/11/2022 300.000,00 26.722,56
Loan 38 | 8/06/2023 195.000,00 40.621.42
Loan 39 024072023 200.000,00 45.693.81
Loan 40 28/12/2023 400.000,00 122.591,74
Loan 41 204032024 250,000,00 90.283,37
Loan 42 1200472024 400.000,00 150,742,839
Liovan 43 03052024 F00,000,00 11837121
Loan 44 04/06/2024 250.000,00 103.006,54
Loan 45 30/04/2025 400.000,00 285.800,47
Loan 46 2200472025 400.000,00 285.964,06
Loan 47 08/04/2025 A400.000,00 286,045,92
Loan 48 314032026 500.000,00 37675163
Loan 49 09712028 1,200,000,00 1.045.472,96
Loan 50 310712028 3.200.000.,00 2.790.446,94
Loan 51 00/10/2027 1.250.000,00 1.115.874,44
Loan 53 01/02/2028 400.000,00 378.427,71
Loan 54 03/07/2023 415.829,24 53.475,54
Loan 56 18/04/2023 200,000,00 51.069.42
Loan 57 4072026 15000, () 1500, 0040, 00
Loan 58 04/07/2026 250.000,00 250.000,00
Loan 59 24/04/2026 220,000,00 206.821,91
11,359.204,84 8.047.884,14

(% It eorresponds to o foan gramted by e COTT
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The detail of the bank loans as of December 31, 2021, expressed in Euros, is the following:

i y Amonnt Pending at |
Loan Last Maturity granted elosure

Loan 24 %) [ 510/2025 TR.375,60 43.627,60
Loan 36 021102 300.000,00 58.359.29
Loan 37 (/032022 150.00:0, 00 9,375,000
Loan 38 L8/ 2023 195,000,00 60,620,92
Loan 3% QT3 200, 000, 00 a6.320.07
Loan 40 2841272023 A00.000,00 162.956,00
Loand 1 2O/03/224 250,000,010 115.51823
Loan 42 20472024 A00.000,00 191.022,09
Loan 43 03/ 0572024 00000, 00 14854874
Loan 44 (el D/ 2024 250.006,00 12812 1L.46
Loan 43 0042025 A00.000,00 334.587,79
Lo 4 220472025 A00.000,00 33506720
Loan 47 (B/04/2025 A00.000,00 335.151,93
Loan 48 JN0E2026 500,000,000 426.189,63
L 49 072028 1.200.000,00 | 129 856,90
Loan 50 31/07/2028 32000000, 00 3014188 42
Lran 51 B 102027 1.250.000,00 L216.577.45
Loan 32 21/03/2022 350.000,00 F8.200,00
Loan 34 Q3072023 1582924 136.000,00
Loan 56 18042023 200,000, B4 579,31
Loan 57 OAA0T 2026 150,000, 00 130,004,00
Loan 58 QAATIIE2G 250,000,0:0 250.000,00°
Loan 59 20020206 220.000,00 220.000,00
11.459.204,84 8.635.307,72

(It corvesponds to o foan granted by ihe COTI
Credit Lines

As of June 30, 2022, the Group has credit policies granted with a total limit amounting to
2.509.000 euros (1.913.500 euros at the end of the previous year), which amount drawn at the
aforementioned date is 418.292,78 euros (273.500 euros at the end of the previous year).

Lines of ffects and Import Advances

As of June 30, 2022, the Group has discount policies granted with a total limit amounting to
575,000 euros (780.000 euros at the end of the previous year), as of that date, no amount has
been drawn (no amount had been drawn at the end of the previous year).

9.1.2) Other Financial Liabilities

Deferred payment for the acquisition of Indenova, S.L.U.

On 30 November 2021 the Group acquired 100% of the shares of Indenova, S.L.U. for a price
of 7.100.000 euros, making a first payment of 4.010.387,67 euros, with the remaining amount,
i.e. 3.080.612,33 euros, deferred. A schedule of payments has been established, with dates 30
November 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 in cash, and another schedule of payments with dates 30
November 2023, 2024 and 2025 consisting of a fixed amount to be paid by means of the
delivery of shares in Lleidanetworks Serveis Telemdtics, 5.A, (own shares),
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Other debts

Other debts mainly comprise one loan held by the Group with the [nstitut Catala de Finances
(ICF), CDTI and former partners of the company Indenova, 8.L.U. The detail as of June 30,
2022 is as follows, in euros:

Entity

[axam 2
[apan 3
Loan ¢
Loan 5
Loan @
Loan ¥
Loan B

The detail at the close of fiscal year 2021 was as follows, in euros:

Fntity

Loan 2
Loan 3
[oan 4
Loan 5
Loané
Loan 7
Loan B

Last
sinturity

2500772023
2040372024
23072024
3122022
311202022
L2022
RN b f i el

Last
‘Maturity

25002023
26/03/2024
2300712024
311202032
311242022
J12/2022
22022

Amount
pranted

FO0L000, 00
199 151,00
111.750,00
217000, 00
200,000,000
LE2.000.00

32.000,00

1.311.%01,00

Amount
granted

J00,000,00
199.151,00
[ 11.750,00
21 7.000,00
250.000,00
[ 62,000,060

32.000,00

1LAL.20 1,00

9.2) Other Information related to Financial Liabilities

a) Classification by Maturity Date

Pending
at closure

T2.793,28
G0,ATH,435
155,632,68
217, 000,00
2O 000,00
162.000,00
32.000,00

4990.304.41

al elosure

10639016

8. 470,17
196.008,13
217.000,00
200, 000,00
1 G2.000,00

32.000,00

1,087.258.46

The breakdown of the maturity dates of the liability {inancial instruments as of June 30, 2022
is the following, in Euros:

Finuueial debis:
Drebs with credit institutions

Oiher fnancial labilifies:
Oither delits

Dreferred payment
acquisition Indencye, 5111

Commercial creditnrs
amd wther payable tems:
Buppliers

Sundry creditors

Stafl

Advances from cosluners

Total

2022
1.423.378.21
142337821

2548, 184,93
G40 4B8, )

| 578,696,183

1.956,932,05
I 180 886,98
152364290
13132445
1214077.72

6, 028,485,19

2023

190175757
100175757

GTO.L3T,
166493 44

503 638,50

ZATIRHG 51

Wz

1.563.639,53
| 563.63%,53

542.541,18
34,902 68

503,638,530

Z.106.0 80,71

Maturity years

2025

1270.917,21
12981721

SO3.0658,50

SO5638,50

1.783.555,71

2026

1024, 166,72
1024 166,72

LIR24.166,72

e thin 5

127331748
1273317 .68

127331768

Total

Bl 176,92
B | 76,52

A 264, 46,55
1,174,884 .22

F080A1333

2.050,932,05
180 880,08
1,523 642,90
131,324 45
2107772

15.687.605,52
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The breakdown of the maturity dates of the liability financial instruments at the close of 2021

is the following, in Euros:

202z
Financial dehts: 1.9ai 259,51
Drebes with credit mstsations | 940,259 31

CHlier financinl lakilities: 262510020

Oeher debits L0da. 405 37
Drefarred payviment

aeguisition Indeneva, 8L 157860043
Commercial creditors

aneck atler payable Hems: 2.4932.222.34
Suppliers |, 222 308.07
Sundry creditors |.478.005 &%
Stalt 11763228
Advances from costinmers 114,206, 30
Tatal TA97.581,85

2023
2.019.724,52
201973452

HiG 068,72
Lz 430,22

503,638,500

2625.793.24

b) Breach of Contractual Obligations

2024

LATT.4d8,33
| 497 448,33

06.340,81
102 702,31

HIE.638.50

2003, 789,14

“Maturity yenrs

205

1497.4458,33
1497 448,35

A03.638,50

303.638,50

2000 086,83

Y52,521,71
952.521,71

252.521,71

g M‘lﬂ‘:‘
thin 5 years

[211.326,20
12115326 20

121132620

2.932.222,34
1.222.378.07
| 47500569
117.632,28
| 14.2086.30

[6.392.098,07

No incidence has been produced in breach of the obligations relating to the loans received from

third parties.

9.3) Guarantees

The Group has contracted guarantees with several financial institutions for a total amount of
504.000 euros, a standard instrument when signing an interconnection agreement.

The Group has no guarantees for loans, with the exception of Indenova, S.L.U., where the
former shareholders of the company are guarantors for certain loans.
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NOTE 10. INFORMATION ON THE DEFERMENT OF PAYMENTS MADE TO
SUPPLIERS. THIRD ADDITIONAL PROVISION. "DUTY TO INFORM" OF LAW
15/2010, OF JULY 5

As indicated in the third additional provision ‘Duty to inform’ of Law 15/2010, of July 5
(modified by Law 31/2014), to amend Law 3/2004 of December 29, by which are established
measures to combat late payment in commercial transactions and with regard to the resolution
January 29, 2016, of the Institute of Accounting and Audit Statements, about the information
to include in the Notes to the Annual Accounts with regard to the average payment period to
suppliers in commercial transactions, is as follows:

Paymentsmade and pending payment on (e Closing

Date Balance
Sivth mionth period ending  Stxth month pedod
on - June 30, 2022 ending on Jung 32021
Days Drays
Avernpe payment period o suppliers 30,68 3523
Ratio paid operations 26T 36,68
Ratin of sutstending payment iransactions 33,43 31,98

Sixth month period ciding  Sixth moath period

on June 30,2022 ending o June 30, 2021
Amount Amnnnt
Total payments 0,554 670,63 5234 714,71
Total ootstanding payments 241196387 232727336

NOTE 11. INFORMATION ON THE NATURE AND LEVEL OF THE RISK FROM
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Group activities are exposed to various types of financial risk, most especially credit, liquidity
and market risks (exchange rate, interest rate and other price risks),

11.1) Credit Risk

The Group's main financial assets are cash and cash balances, trade and other receivables and
investments, which represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

The Group's credit risk is attributable mainly to its commercial debts. The amounts are reflected
in the net balance of provisions for bad debts, estimated by the Parent Company's management
based on the experience of previous years and its assessment of the current cconomic
environment.
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11.2) Liquidity Risk

The treasury department has a daily overview of the actual cash position and compares it with
the weekly forecasts. The Group has ample short-term financial capacity, as reflected in the
positive balances on eredit accounts.

In the face of global uncertainties, such as the spread of COVID-19, the Group has been able
to secure the cooperation of financial institutions to sign new short and long-term financing
agrecments.

11.3) Market Risk

The general market situation in recent years has been unfavourable due to the difficult economic
environment.

11.4) Exchange Rate Risk

The Group's main exchange rate risks are with the US dollar and the Colombian peso. The
Group does not currently operate exchange rate insurance, although it is a variable that is being
analysed for the future. The risk is low in the Group. as it has both expenses and revenues in
these currencies, and therefore uses current accounts in these currencies to be able lo match
foreign currency payments with foreign currency receipts. In the event of a currency mismatch,
the Group uses the spot market, always analysing the evolution of the currency one month in
advance in order to be able to take advantage of the best moment for the exchange.

11.5) Interest Rate Risk

Changes in interest rates modify the fair value of assets and liabilities bearing a fixed interest
rate as well as the future flows of assets and liabilities referenced to a variable interest rate,

The objective of interest rate risk management is to achieve a balance in the debt structure that
will minimize the cost of debt over the multiannual horizon with a reduced volatility in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account.

NOTE 12, EQUITY

12.1) Share Capital of Parent Company

12.1) Share Capital

As of December 31, 2021 and June 30, 2022, the share capital amounts to 320.998,86 euros and
is represented by 16.049.943 registered shares of 0,02 euros nominal each, fully subsecribed and
paid up. These holdings enjoy equal political and economic rights.

As of June 30, 2022, as well as of December 31, 2021, there are no companies with a direct or
indirect stake equal to or greater than 10% of the share capital.
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Capital Increase

By virtue of the admission to trading on BME Growth, the Parent Company carried out the
following transactions in its share capital:

- OnJune 1, 2015, a General Shareholders' Meeting resolved to split the shares of the Parent
Company by reducing the par value of the shares by 60,10 euros at a nominal value of 0,02
euros per share. In this operation, 3.005 shares were generated for each old share, with the
capital stock being formed by 11.812.655 shares with a nominal value of each share at
nominal 0,02 euros each,

- OnJune 1,2015, it was agreed by the General Shareholders' Meeting to modify the system
of representation of the shares, transforming the nominative securities representing the
shares in which the Parent Company's capital is divided into account entries.

- OnJune 1, 2015, it was resolved by means of a General Meeting of Shareholders to modify
the transmission regime of the shares of the Parent Company, passing this transfer of shares
to be free and not subject to consent or authorization by the Company nor by shareholders

- On June 1, 2015, it was agreed by the General Meeting of Sharcholders to request the
incorporation in the segment of Companies in Expansion of the Alternative Stock Market
of all the shares representing the Parent Company.

- On September 30, 2015, it was agreed to increase the Parent Company's Capital Stock by
84.745,78 euros through the issuance of 4.237.288 shares with a nominal value of 0,02
euros and an issue premium of 1,16 euros per share, This extension is fully subseribed and
disbursed.

12.2) Reserves

The breakdown for Reserves is as follows, in euros:

30/06/2022 31/12/2021
Legal Reserve 64,199,777 G, 190 77
Valuntary Reserves 3.3537.687,65 3.220,716,13
Megative resulls from previous years (820,530,75) (1.349.900,40)
2.601.3560.67 1.935.015,50

12.3) Issue Premium

This reserve amounted to 5.244.344,28 euros, of which 329.090.20 eurcs arose as a result of
the capital increase carried out in 2007 and 4.915.254,08 euros arose as a result of the capital
increase carried out in the 2015 exercise for the departure of the Parent Company to the BME
Growth, It has the same restrictions and can be used for the same purposes as voluntary reserves,
including their conversion inte share capital.
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12.4) Own Shares

On | June 2015, the Company's shareholders' meeting resolved to authorise the Board of
Directors to derivatively acquire treasury shares under the terms provided for in current
legislation, These acquisitions of treasury shares were made through the liquidity provider GVC
Gaesco Valores SV, S.A, At the shareholders' meeting on 7 June 2021, the allocation of funds for
the treasury stock programme is approved. ANDBANK SAU was appointed as manager for the
acquisition of the first 500.000 euros, to allocate it to Lleidanet contractual obligations with respeet
to the acquisition of Indenova. whereby it was agreed to pay part of the deferred purchase price
in shares of the parent company. Subsequently, on 23 July 2021, a new allocation of a further
500 thousand euros was made, and all in all, 175.534 shares were purchased al an average price
of 5,53 euros per share.

On 29 September 2021, the company changed its liquidity provider, appointing Solventis A V.,
S.A. in which 30 thousand shares were transferred from the former liguidity provider Gaesco.,
and an additional 150 thousand euros were provided for the management of the company's
treasury shares.

Given the evolution of the Parent Company's share price during the year 2021, there have been
numerous transactions with own shares in the market. Specifically, the Group's own share
transactions were carried out to pay for the acquisition of Indenova, and the results of these
transactions were recognised in equity, as required by prevailing legislation. In 2021, these
results have led to a decrease in Voluntary Reserves in the amount of 175.257,73 euros. During
the financial year 2020, they led to an increase in Voluntary Reserves in the amount of
1.976.555,51 euros.

As of June 30, 2022, the Parent Company holds own shares for an amount of 1.848.389,89
euros (1.683.884,76 euros in the previous year) at an average cost price of 4,52 euros per share
(5,14 euros per share in the previous year).
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NOTE 14. TAX SITUATION

The following is the breakdown of the balances with the Tax Authorities as of June 30, 2022
and December 31, 2021, in euros:

o 306022 31/122021
Reeeivitble Payable Receivable: Payahle

Mon-current:
Deferred Tax Assels 32539903 - 2182637

32539903 - 291.926,37 -
Current:
Value Added Tax e 111,09 265.641,45 9735850 339,092,593
Subsidies recaivable (%) 36,639,006 - 36.659.96 -
Inecome Tax retentions - £ 496,36 - 126, 185.04
Comypany Tax T68 863,24 10587592 603,755,060 -
Social Security bodies - 14 1.536.01 1730349 133.653,73

R49.634,2% A95.5:449,74 739.510,52 50893170

Tax Situation

In accordance with current legislation, tax payments cannot be considered final until they have
been inspected by the tax authorities, or until the statute barring period of four years has passed.

As of June 30, 2022, the Group has open (o tax inspection all the taxes to which it is subject
from the financial year 2017 to the 2020 financial year. Consequently, as a result of possible
inspections, additional liabilities could avise to those registered by the Group. However, the
Directors of the Parent Company and its tax advisors consider that such liabilities, if they oceur,
would not be significant on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Profit Tax

The congiliation of the net amount of income and expenses for the six-month period ended June
30, 2022 of the Parent Conipany with the taxable income tax base is as follows:

Prafit and Loss Account
Financial year’s earnings
{After taxes) (six-months) 244.593,40
Ticreases Decreases Net effect
Profit tax 2H.687,98 - 28.6H7,98
Permanent differences 200,019,63 - 200,019,63

Taxable income (tax resulf) 473.601,01
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The conciliation of the net amount of income and expenses for the six-month period ended June
30, 2021 of the Parent Company with the taxable income tax base is as follows:

Profit and Lioss Account

Financial year’s earnings {After taxes) TT2.367,96
Inerenses Lrecreases Net effect
Profit tax - {14.902,83) (14.902,83)
Permanent differences 216,395,778 - 216,395,784
973.860,21

Taxable income (tax result)

The following are the calculations made with regard to the Group Tax to be paid, in Euros:

2022 2021
{6 months)
Charge at 25 % of Taxable Income 118.400,25 119.974 88
Deductions (58.785,13) (72.588,35)
Nel tax payahle 59.615,12 47.386,53
Less: withholdings and payments - {11,61)
Tax payable 59.615,12 47.374,92

The main components of corporate income tax expense are as follows:

2022 2021
{6 months) (6 months)
Current tax 8132726 50.759,17
Deferred tax (33.427,14) (42.097,47)
Positive profit tax adjustments 14.584,43 -
Total 62.484,55 B.662,30

‘The movement of deferred taxes generated and cancelled during June 30, 2022 is detailed below
in euros:

Balance as of Balance as of
312021 Generated 30M6/2022
Deferred tax assets:
Tax credits 11.49% 38 - 1149938
Deduction credits 2B0.426,59 33.472.66 313,899,065

Total 291.926,37 33,472,606 325.399.03
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The movement of deferred taxes generated and cancelled during financial year 2021 is detailed

below in euros:

Deferred tax nssets:
Tax credits
Cridits for deductions

Total

Balange as of
3171202020

23.547,88
136.418.80

159.958,68

Credits for Tax Losses Carry Forward

'lf-}mr.raicd.

144.00%, 19

144.008,19

Cancelled

(12041500

(12.041,50)

As of June 30, 2022, the Group has the following deductions to apply:

Year of Origin

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

NOTE 15. INCOME AND EXPENSES

Amount

51407818
172.071L.08
181 164,26
214.961,29
25177901

90,887.03
127.371,20
300.824,03
188,001 46
180.537.92
| T0.354,09
163.214.66
[36.418,80
131.964,53

39,709, 10

2.570.726,66

a) Income, disaggregation of revenue from ordinary activities

Dalance a8 of
3fz2021

11,499,38
280,426,99

291.926,37

The distribution of the net turnover corresponding to the Company's ordinary activities is shown

helow:

Businesy arcas

(figures in thousands of euros)
SaaS Serviccs

SME Wholesale

SME Comercial

Total

2022 (6 months):
Furgs: Y
4 ATLTETT 39.66%
4,392.649 70 41, 70%
1962 386,77 | &,63%:
10.552.762,24 100, 00%

2021 (6 months)’

Huros
3.126.825,62
3.814.463,05
1.353.675,41

B.294.964,08

%
37,7096
45,98%
L6, 32%

1040,00%%
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The distribution of revenue from the Company's ordinary activities by geographical market is
shown below:

_ et 2022 (6 months) 2021 (Gmonths)
Geographic market description Baros L Tuprns .
Mational 4. 696, 802,90 A4 30%, 3,700.777,62 44.61%
European Lnion 28385271 36, B0% 254541999 27.07%
Fest of the World .00k, 106,64 R52% 348 766,47 28,32%
Total 10,532, 762,24 [TIRITL S H.294.964,08 100,00 %

The distribution of revenue from the Company's ordinary activities, by type of conlract, is
shown below;

- 2022 (6 months) 2021 (6 manths)
Type of contract
Fixed price contracts (#) 9.331.173.81 B.177.675,84
Variahle conlracts (%) |20 588,43 | 17.288,24
Total 10.532.762,24 8.294.964,08

(51 Thie prices affeded to customers for sach SwaS prodies, as well as the Wholesale prices affered s a specifiv pertod of
time fow @ destinetion ln the SME, ave considered fived prices, Please pote thai il fivolees (esed arve based on
CAUFIEINEY COTENRpITa,

(*%  There aneagreemei winl cosiomes ke die selling price & vorkeble depieadiog m Mo prairedrer vl tanesse i s,

The distribution of revenue from the Company's ordinary activities, by contract term, is shown
below:

2022 (f months) 2021 (6 months)
Duration of contract
Shori-lerm conleacls g i
Long-tenn contracts 10.532.762,24 294096408
Total (*) 10.532,762,24 §.294.0964,08

P51 e controcrs stgued by Lleida et with its elfonats ove sopmelly for o period of one year wid aeit reneweal. We are el
e af any clivats whe lave asted us o termingte the contract i the firg pear.

The distribution of the net turnover corresponding to the Company's ordinary activities, by sales
channels, is shown below:

2022 (6 months) 2021 (6 months)
Sales channels
Distributors or wholesalers Te9.032.41 6835,391,00
Reatailers (*) 2046597 41 113.5%6,42
Thirect siles 9,557, 132,42 7495 976,66
Tertand T0.532, 762,24 8. 204, 964,08

() Hetailers are engiomers who bayonr prodiets ondite,

There are invoices to be issued, mainly for intercannection customer consumption in June 2022,
which are invoices issued in July 2022,
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There are no significant payment terms, The usual method of collection is by transfer, either on
demand or 30 days after the invoice date,

There are no returns as there is no tangible asset. As for guarantees, they are those inherent to
the service established by standard contract.

b) Supplies

The staff expenses as in the Profit and Loss Account are composed as follows, in euros:

2022 o _
(G months): 2021 (6 months)
Consumption of merchandise
Diommestics 2.277.676,07 1.658.972,52
Intra-Community Acquisitions 200R. 168,02 L494.311,48
lmports 25186820 824.329.52
5.227.712,29 4077.613,52

c¢) Staff expenses

The staff expenses as in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account are composed as follows, in
Euros:

2022 2021 -

{6 months) (fmonths) |
Social Security contributions 631,423,909 404.265,07
Other wetfare costs E0.355,09 7.981,78
731.779,08 462.346,85

d) Financial Results

This heading in the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account is composed as follows, in Euros:

L2022 2021 {

(6 months) (6 months) !
Financial incomes 269,70 398,37
Oithar financial ineomes 269,70 398,37
Financial expenses (B0L046,82) (38.113,30)
For debts with eredit institutions (80,046,582} (38,113,300
Change in fair value of financial instruments - 14,85
Exchanpe differences 75.808,23 47.735,71
Giaing { bosses) on disposals and other A 07 -

fmpairments of financial asssts - =

Financial Result Positive / (Negative) (3.154,82) 10.235,63
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NOTE 16. INFORMATION ON THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group has no assets, nor has it incurred expenses, aimed at minimizing the environmental
impact and protecting and improving the environment. There are likewise no provisions for
risks and expenses and no contingencies relating to protection and improvement ol the
environment,

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

At the date of preparation of these consolidated interim financial statements, the Group has
assessed the possible impact of the war in Ukraine on its operations and results. To date, there
has been no significant impaet for the Group, only the increase in the price of electricity,
although it is not a cost item that impacts the Group's margin significantly.

Excepl as mentioned in the preceding paragraphs, there have been no significant events between
the balance sheet date and the date of preparation of these consolidated interim financial
statements that would not have been included in the consolidated financial statements or of
which knowledge would be useful to a user of the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 18. CONSOLIDATED EARNINGS

The following is the breakdown as of June 30, 2022 of the Consolidated Earnings in Euros:

Damings  Earmings
A aimrs b Attributed to _Attributed to
Indiyithual Earnings Parent Minority
Subsidiary of the Companies  Shareholding Compaiy Tnterests
Lleidanetworks Serveis
Telemitics, 5.A. 263.893,40 - 263 893.40 -
Licidanctworks Serveis
Telematics, LTD 13,780,806 100%% 13. 280,86 -
Ligidanet UISA Inc 9,004,635 [T 000465 -
Lleidanet Honduras, SA - T - ™
Lieidanet Dominicana, SRL 303,04 PLEELE 392.96 LN
Lleida SAS 231091 EHE £.310.91 -
Llcida Chile SPA (1.125.93) 10 (L.125,93) -
Llgichinet do Brasil Lida (42, 14) 99,99% (42,136) {0,004y
Lleidanet Guatemala - E - -
Portabilidades Espafiolas, 5.4, r 100 - -
Llgidanet Costa Rica - | 04 . -
Lietdanet Pern |.690,02 L00%, 1.690.02 =
Lleida Information Technology
Melwork Services (42.568,00) 40 00, (2085830 (21,705, 68)
Lleidanet South Africa (304,48) 100% (354 48) -
Indenova, 5.L.LL (370839231 1H#%a (379.839,23) -
Lleicanet SAAS Middle
East and Africa DMCC (2.784.82) 100G (2.7R4.82) =

(130.181,72) (108.472,11) (21.709,61)
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The following is the breakdown for financial year 2021 of the Consolidated Earnings in Euros:

Individual _ Enrnings w0

Earnings Attributed to Resultado
ofthe _ . _ Parent Atribuidoa

Subsidizry Companies Shavehelding Company Sneios Externos

Llgidanetworks Serveis Telemdtics, 8.4 FI3I170 - 273.117.70 E
Llgitdmetworks Serveis Telemities, [T 24.413,18 | Qi 2441318 -
Llgidanet USA Inc 588838 [ 00 588838 -
Lleidanet Honduras, 54 - T - -
Licidanet Doninicana, SEL {B6E,03) 0.98% {B68,746) {017y
Lizida SAS 206.724,13 (I H04.724,13 -
Ligida Chile $PA {6.651,7T |00 (6.651,77) -
[leidanet do Brasil Lida 8.840,52 4 %% 884058 (0,06}
Ligidanet Guatemala - R - -
Porlabilidades Espafiolas, 5.4, 016282 100%: bo162.82 -
Lleidanet Cosia Rica (1249 100 %0 (12,49} =
Lleidanet Peri (I0EELED) 100%% {LOEELEL) -
Lleida Information Technology Netwink Seivices (32.777.70) 40%; {16.061,07) (16 716,65
Lleidanet SAAS Middle East and Aftica DMCC (128610} 1% (1286, 10) -

402.384,79 {16.716,86)

The adjustments made to the Earnings associated to Parent Company as of June 30, 2022 is as
follows:

Tndividual earnings attributed to Parenl Company (108.472,11)
Consolidation adjustments;

Goodwill amortisation (234.421,48)
[mpairment reversal 175854
Taotal (163.444,15)

The adjustments made to the Earnings associated to Parent Company as of June 30, 2021 was
as follows:

Individual earnings artributed to Parent Company 492.384,79
Consolidation adjustments:

Triterest reversal
Lmpairment reversal

Total

(7.805.86)
182.942,76

G67.521,69
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NOTE 19. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

19.1) Balances and Transactions with the Directors of the Parent Company and Senior
Executives

The remuneration acerued during the six months ended on June 30, 2022 by the Board of
Directors of the Parent Company amounted to 63.000,00 euros. In the six-month period ended
on June 30, 2021, remuneration accrued by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company
amounted to 49.500,00 euros.

Senior Management duties are performed by three members of the same Board of Directors
(three members in the six months ended on June 30, 2021), with remuneration amounting to
129.536.26 euros in wages and salaries (123.996,15 euros in the six months ended on June 30,
2021) and 9.452,11 euros in other remuneration (same amount in the six months ended on June
30, 2021).

As of June 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, there are no loans or advances to the Parent
Company's Board of Directors, as well as commitments for pension supplements, guarantees or

sureties granted in its favour.

Other Information Regarding the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the Capital Companies Law, it is reported that the members of the Parent Company's
Management Body do not hold interests in other companies with the same, similar or
complementary corporate purpose.

In accordance with the above-mentioned Law Capital Companies, it is also reported that the
members of the Board have carried out no activity, on their own behalf or on behalf of others,
with the Group, which may be considered to be not in accordance with normal trading and not
carried out under normal market conditions.

NOTE 20. OTHER INFORMATION

The average number of persons employed during the six months ended 30 June 2022 and 2021,
by category, is as follows:

2022 2021
Senior Executives 4 4
Administration 021 ]
Commercial 22,25 23
Huwman Resources 4,21 2
Production a8 46
Maintenance 2 I
Customer service 16,33 9
Business development 8,08 9
Complianes 337 4
[ntellectual Property 121 2
TOTAL 166,66 104
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The distribution of staff at the end of each six-month period ending 30 June 2022, by category
and gender, is as follows:

2022
Men Wornen Total
Senior Execulives 2 'y 4
Administration 3 7 K]
Commergial Y] 14 il
Froduction &4 (3] 103
Customer service 11 i 1%
Busines: development 4 ] 10
Compl iance = ] 5
Human Resources 2 3 5
Industrial Property 2 - 2
TOTAL 118 63 181

The distribution of staff at the end of each six-month period ending 30 June 2021, by category
and gender, is as follows:

 Disability greater
Men Women Total than or equal to 33%%
Senior Exccotives | 2 3 -
Administration 2 3 5 |
Commercial 9 14 23 1
Production a9 7 46 1
M nintanance . 1 1 -
Customer seryice - ] G -
Business developmeni 5 o -
Compliance 4 4 “
Hismian Resources 1 I 2 -
Inteltectual Property 2 - 2 -
TOTAL S8 46 104 3

The amount of the fees acerued for the individual and consolidated audit services of the Inlerim
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on June 30, 2022 amounted to 24,500
eurns (17.000,00 euros in the 6-month period ended on June 30, 2021),

It is reported that the Parent Company has paid during the year the premium corresponding to
the civil liability policy that would eventually cover damages caused to third parties due to acts
or omissions related to the performance of its duties. The amount of the premium amounted to
19.107,00 euros (19.107,00 euros in the previous year).



Ingering Consalidated Finaneiol Siatenents of Groug Leidonetworky Servels Telenarics, 5.4 and Subwidiaries
S the sivemonth period epded on June 30, 2022 5

NOTE 21. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION

Details of goodwill in consolidation at year-end 2022 are as follows, in euros:

~ Cost Amortisation Net Value
A1z a1z Jf1z2022

Cost:
Indenova, 5.1 408842958 {312.561,97) 437586761
Goodwill on consolidation 468842958 (312.561,97) 4375867601

According to the estimates and projections available to the Parent's Board of Directors, the
projected cash flows attributable to these cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units to which the various goodwill units are allocated allow the net value of each of the
goodwill units recognised as of June 30, 2022 to be recovered.
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GROUP LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS
TELEMATICS, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR
THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2022

In compliance with the provisions of the Capital Companies Law, the direclors then present the
director’s report for the year, in order to complement, expand and comment on the balance
sheet, profit and loss account and the corresponding report for the first half of the year 2022,

1. BUSINESS EVOLUTION

In the first half of FY2022, revenues increased by 27% to 10,6 million euros. Saa$ sales
increased by 34%, with increases in all its products, namely 11% in the notification line, 8% in
conltract sales and 131% in the other SaaS products, The increase in the notification line was
due to the rise in claims on our customers' debit balances, mainly from financial institutions.
Order intake grew less than notifications because it is an advanced indicator of the current
economic cycle, with consumer credit tightening. The incorporation of Indenova also led to a
significant increase in other SaaS products.

On the commetcial SMS side, aimed at our national customers, it increased by 45%, we
continue to have a niche strategy and where our customers trust us, because of the high quality
of the product. SMS Wholesale has increased its sales by 15%, reaching pre-pandemic volumes,
thanks to the new traffic achieved by our team thanks to the attendance to the commercial events
that are organised again.

The margin on sales reached 50%, compared to the 51% it represented in the first half of 2021
in percentage terms, in absolute terms we have an increase of 26%. The margin in percentage
terms is maintained due to the higher increase in SMS sales compared to the increase in SaaS.
SMS sales have lower unit margins than SaaS sales. The Group's commercial efforts are focused
on signing new international SaaS sales contracts, although the brand image we have in the
SMS area has enabled us to significantly increase this line of business.

The incorporation of Indenova into the consolidated perimeter is reflected by the 65% increase
in personnel costs, an additional 1,2 million compared to the same half of 2021, The acquisition
provides us with cutting-edge technology in the sector, and also strengthens our staff of
developers and technicians with qualified personnel. The basis of innovation in the group is the
incorporation and retention of talent in order to continue to be pioneers in the sector. There are
currently 181 people in the group, an increase of 74% compared to the same half of 2021,

EBITDA stood al 909 thousand euros, 17% of the gross margin. The decrease compared to
2021 is explained by the increase in structural costs such as personnel and external services due
to the increase in trade fairs and travel, as well as Indenova's own expenses,
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The operating result is negative 119 thousand euros due to the increase in the amortisation

expense for Indenova's goodwill.

. . 2021 2022

Sales by business lines - Thousands of euros (6months) (6 manths) Var. € Var.%

Saas Services 3.127 4,178 1.051 34%
SMS Solutions 1.354 1.962 BOA 45%
|C¥ WHOLESALE Solutions 3.814 4.3583 579 15%
Total 8.295 10,533 2.238 27%
Consolidated Data in thousands of Euros 2021 (6 months) 2022 {6 months) Var. € Var.%
Sales 8.295 10.533 2.238 27%
Cost of Sales -4.078 -5.228 1.150 28%
Gross Margin 4,217 5.305 1.088 26%
Payrall -1.922 -3.164 1.242 65%
External Services -1.532 -1.861 329 21%
Other Incomes 30 23 -7 -23%
Activations 400 606 206 52%
EBITDA 1.193 909 -284 -24%
Amortizations -536 -1.027 491 92%
Results from Disposals -9 2 - -
Other Incomes 1 1 - -
Operating result 649 -119 768 118%
Financial Net Result -38 -80 42 111%
Exchange Rate Differences 48 76 28 58%
Profit Before Tax 659 -123 -782 -119%

2. IMPORTANT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER THE CLOSURE

There have been no subsequent events, other than those already mentioned in the Explanatory
Notes to the financial statements, that demonstrate circumstances that already existed on June
30,2022 and which, due to the significance of their economic impact, would require adjustments
to the financial statements or amendments to the information contained in the Explanatory

Notes,

Nor are there any subsequent events, other than those already mentioned in the explanatory
notes, that demonstrate conditions that did not exist on June 30, 2022 that are of such
significance as lo require additional disclosures in the explanatory notes to the consolidated

financial statements,
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3. PROBABLE EVOLUTION OF THE GROUP

The forecast for the second half of 2022 is to increase sales of Saa8 products through the
consolidation of international markets as well as the sale of new hybrid produets resulting from
the integration of Indenova S.L. and thus achieve an increase in the Group's results.

4. R&D ACTIVITIES

In the first half of fiscal year 2022, the Group invested 606 thousand euros in research activities
aimed mainly at the Group’s line of certification,

5. OPERATIONS WITH OWN SHARES

In accordance with the provisions of BME Growth and Euronext Growth regulations, the Group
signed a liquidity agreement with the placement bank on the occasion of its launch on the
market. This agreement establishes both the delivery of a certain amount of (reasury shares, as
well as the deposit of an amount of cash. The objective of this contract is to allow investors to
negotiate the shares of the Group, ensuring that any interested person has the possibility of
buying or selling shares.

As of June 30, 2022, the Group had 401,718 securities with a valuation on that date of

1.135.540,89 euros, which represented 2,5% of the shares of Lleidanetworks Serveis
Telematics, S.A.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During the first half of the financial year 2022, the Company has not used any instruments
related to financial derivatives.

The Group's treasury department has a daily overview of the actual cash position and compares
this with weekly forecasts. The Group has ample short-term financial capacity, as reflected in
the positive balances on eredit accounts.

In the face of global uncertainties, such as the spread of COVID-19, the Group has been able
to engage financial institutions to sign new short and long-term financing agreements.

The group's main exchange rate risks are with the US dollar and the Colombian peso. The group
does not currently operate with exchange rate insurance, although this is a variable that is being
analysed for the future. The group's risk is low because we have both expenses and revenues in
those currencies, so we use current accounts in those currencies to be able to match foreign
currency payments with foreign currency receipts. When we have a currency shortfall, we go
to the spot market, always analysing the evolution of the currency one month in advance in
order to take advantage of the best exchange rate moment.
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7. DEFERRALS OF PAYMENT TO SUPPLIERS

Information regarding deferrals of payment to suppliers is shown in the Financial Statements
in Note 10,

S b ko W Wk R



PREPARATION OF THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIRECTORS® REPORT

In compliance with company law, the Board of Directors of LLEIDANETWORS SERVEIS
TELEMATICS, S.A. draws up the Interim Consolidated Financial Statements and the
Consolidated Directors’ Report for the period that ends on June 30, 2022, Both of them are
comprised in the attached pages number | to 56.

Lleida, October 14th, 2022
The Board of Directors
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